1972

Commonwealth National Bank v. Kennedy Company, An Unincorporated Association, Charles R. Kennedy, Jr., Black Corporation, White Partnership, Doe One Through Doe Ten, Inclusive and the Kennedy Company, A Co-Partnership, Charles R. Kennedy; Rebecca Kennedy v. Commonwealth National Bank, A National Banking Association, And Firemen'S Fund Insurance Company : Brief of Appellant

STATEMENT OF THE KIND OF CASE

This is an action to collect on a note by the bank with cross-actions for damages for wrongful dishonor of a check drawn on the Commonwealth National Bank by Charles R. Kennedy and Rebecca Z. Kennedy, co-partners doing business as The Kennedy Company, and for wrongful garnishment of the Kennedy family bank account in Salt Lake City, Utah

DISPOSITION IN LOWER COURT

Defendants stipulated to plaintiff's note of \$8,500 and interest. The attorneys' fees for plaintiff and cross-complaint for defendants were tried by a jury.

Verdict for plaintiff of \$ 2,000.00 attorneys' fees, and verdict against cross-complainants on wrongful dishonor of check, no cause of action. The Judge refused to allow evidence or to consider the wrongful garnishment claim.

RELIEF SOUGHT ON APPEAL

Defendants and cross-complainants seek reversal of the verdict and judgment and the refusal to allow evidence to be presented to the jury on the wrongful garnishment claim, and a new trial.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

The original action to collect a note, interest and attorneys' fees (R 1-3) was commenced by Commonwealth National Bank of San Francisco, ("Bank") against

Kennedy Company, an unincorporated association Charles R. Kennedy and some fictitious names.

Affidavit for garnishment filed with the complaint was incomplete. It alleged "...Defendants are about to dispose of, conceal, or assign their property held by Continental Bank and Trust Company." (R 5) Nothing is said about, "to defraud creditors in the affidavit." The affidavit was signed by a vice president of Commonwealth National Bank.

Writ of garnishment issued August 8, 1969, by the County Clerk, and was served August 11, 1969 (R 6-7) The garnishment tied up the family checking account in the names of Rebecca Z. or

Charles R Kennedy of approximately \$20,000. (1004) without any notice whatever.

Upon oral motion without notice, Judge Stewart M. Hanson ordered the garnishment be released August 14, 1969. (R 8) An order was signed December 5, 1969 nunc pro tunc as of August 14, 1969. (R 58-59)

Plaintiff filed a motion September 11, 1969, to set aside release of garnishment, for re-instatement of garnishment, and for an order directing Kennedy to replace the funds into the account at the time of garnishment. (R 20-21) Objections were filed to the motion (R 25-27) and an affidavit of defendant Kennedy. (R 28-29)

Three affidavits from plaintiff Bank officials were filed as support for the motion. These were affidavits:

1. regarding an un-notarized letter, clearly inadmissable (R 31-32)
2. Affidavit explaining error in original affidavit (R 37-38)
3. Affidavit stating that defendant Kennedy had no known assets in California (R 39-41)

No facts were given to support a claim that defendant Kennedy was going to try to defraud creditors. October 21, 1969 Judge Merrill C. Faux ordered a writ of garnishment to issue (R 42). The garnishment did not catch any money. There was a debit to defendant's, Kennedy, account October 21, 1969 of \$549.62. (R 1005)

The order was filed and signed November 25, 1969 (R 60) and provided, "It is hereby ordered that the release of garnishment be set aside and writ of garnishment reinstated."

Plaintiff, November 12, 1969 (R 50) filed a second motion to compel defendant Kennedy to replace the funds freed when the first garnishment was released. This motion was argued November 25, 1969 after the Continental Bank branch manager and vice president testified that defendant's account showed a debit of \$549.62 October 21, 1969. The Judge gave an order in Court that defendant, Charles R. Kennedy replace \$11,000 in the bank account subject to the garnishment by

December 2, 1969. The order was signed and filed December 23, 1969 (R 66-67).

Plaintiff Bank, December 17, 1969, filed a motion without any supporting affidavit for an order to show cause why defendant, Charles R. Kennedy, should not be held in contempt for failure to replace the \$11,000. The order to show cause was issued December 15, 1969 by Judge Merrill C. Faux. (R 63-64) Motion to quash (R 72) and affidavits of defendant Kennedy (R 73-74) and of others (R75-82) were filed. Argument was given on failure to comply with Statute 78-32-3 UCA and Bott vs. Bott, 20 U 2d 329, and failure to file and serve a written order.

January 15, 1970 (R 83) the following order was entered and filed:

"Defendant Charles R. Kennedy appearing before the Honorable Merrill C. Faux, one of the judges of the above entitled court, on January 7, 1970, upon an Order to Show Cause why he should not be held in contempt for failure to replace \$11,000 of the funds withdrawn from his garnished bank account at Continental Bank as ordered by this court on November 25, 1969, and the court finding that Charles R. Kennedy has sufficient assets to comply with said order,

It is hereby Ordered that Charles R. Kennedy replace \$11,000 withdrawn from his garnished bank account at Continental Bank by February 2, 1970, and that upon failure to comply with this Order, Charles R. Kennedy

appear before this court
on February 2, 1970, at
9:00 a.m.

Dated this 15th day of
January, 1970.

BY THE COURT

/s/ Merrill C. Faux "

It was from this order "petition to grant an appeal" was filed with the Supreme Court. (R 87-94) This appeal was not granted when plaintiff agreed not to press any garnishment until after judgment.

November 24, 1970, Defendant Kennedy requested interrogatories relating to the information within plaintiff's knowledge supporting plaintiff's affidavit that Kennedy was going to defraud creditors. (R 145-147)

Judge Marcellus K. Snow sustained plaintiff's objections on basis that the question of wrongful garnishment had already been adjudicated in favor of plaintiff. (R 148 & 151) Petition to grant an appeal, January 21, 1971, (R 166-176) was declined.

At the commencement of the trial November 22, 1971, Judge Bryant H. Croft refused to consider the question of wrongful attachment and held the question was res Judicata,

The judgment rendered on the complaint is not in issue except for attorneys' fees. The claim of cross-complainants for wrongful dishonor of a check, arises when the Commonwealth

Bank returned a check drawn on the bank by the Kennedy Company for \$5,000.00, payable to the order of Mr. Robert McCluskey. It is undisputed that there were sufficient funds in the account at all times to pay the check. The account balance was \$9,617.64 at the beginning, and at the end of May was \$15,682.88. The balance of the account did not get below \$7,177. (R 397)

The check was on a form printed by The Kennedy Company (Exhibit 3). It was dated May 6, 1968, payable to the order of Mr. Robert McCluskey, Hamilton Montana, for \$5,000.00. It was drafted upon Commonwealth National Bank, San Francisco, California. It was encoded on the bottom

"1210-0097" in magnetic ink. That is the number assigned by the Federal Reserve System to the Bank. (R 425) Also encoded on the bottom of the check was the number "597". That is the number assigned by United California Bank, whose computer is used to process checks, to the Bank. (R42) Also encoded in magnetic ink on the bottom of the check is the number "301271". That number is the number assigned by the Bank to the Kennedy Company account. The transit number for Commonwealth National Bank is "11-97". (R 628) The check bore the signature of "Rebecca Z. Kennedy" (R 398) When the account was opened by Mr. and Mrs. Kennedy, Mrs. Kennedy's signature on that account, according to

the signature card, was "R.Z. Kennedy" (R 427) However, her full name and signature was known to the Bank, and Charles Kennedy has arranged with the Bank through the President, Daniel White, to honor all checks on that account, whether signed "R. Z. Kennedy" or "Rebecca Z. Kennedy". (R 627) The check contained, however, a handstamped number of another bank, "93-58", which had been assigned to the First National Bank in Bozeman, Montana. Nevertheless, the check promptly reached the Bank where it was presented for payment. (R 625) Miss Irene Rosa testified the check was dishonored because (a) it had been sent to the wrong bank--it was not drawn on

the Commonwealth National Bank; (b) the signature was irregular, and (c) the account was really named The Kennedy Company Enterprises, not The Kennedy Company. Cross-defendants then attempted to introduce into evidence a check similar in all respects to the check in issue signed by "R.Z. Kennedy", which the Bank honored in August, 1968, to prove that the check in question could not have been properly dishonored for the reasons given. The court refused to admit that into evidence. (R 638-639) It is inconceivable that the jury could have found "no cause of action" had it been informed of the existence of a similar check which arrived at the Bank during

the critical period before Mr. Kennedy discovered that his check had been dishonored. Refusal to admit such a check constitutes prejudicial error.

The court refused to permit that portion of the testimony of Daniel White, President of the Bank, to be read to the jury whenever he testified that the check in question was dishonored by mistake.

Mr. White's deposition was noticed to be taken in behalf of the Bank. On the day before the deposition was scheduled, the Bank attempted to call off the despositi. but cross-complainants would not consent and therefore his deposition was taken. Mr. White testified that he was familiar with both signatures of Rebecca Kennedy,

and that Charles Kennedy has arranged for both of them to be honored by the Bank on all Kennedy accounts, regardless of what the signature cards contained; that he told all officers of the Bank that no Kennedy check was to be returned without payment, but should be referred to him; that somehow the check in issue had not been referred to him, in disregard of his orders, and the practice of the Bank. Mr. White was then asked: "Do you know of any reason why this check would have been returned by the Commonwealth National Bank?" Objection to the question was sustained, although that is practically the same question cross-defendant asked of his own witness, Irene Rosa. The

answer stricken declare: "No. We sent it back as we apparently did. It was an internal mistake." (R 628) Clearly, Mr. White was entitled to answer that question with a "yes" or "no". But the court did not permit him even to do that. Furthermore, he was entitled to explain his answer, but he wasn't permitted to do that. It is axiomatic that the president of the Bank is the most qualified man to know whether an item should have been paid or dishonored, and whether such dishonor was mistaken or malicious. No additional qualification of such a witness on an internal banking matter is required. The failure of the court to permit him to so testify is prejudicial error. Had

the jurors been allowed to hear his testimony, it is difficult to see how they would have returned a verdict of no cause of action.

Miss Rosa testified "We typed on the check 'Item not drawn on 11-97'". (R 437) Later she testified when the check was received "Item not drawn on 11-97" was already on the check, and in her opinion this raised a question as to whether the check should be paid. When Mr. White was asked the same question: "Do you know how that got on the check?" he answered, "I couldn't say how it got there. . . I just wouldn't know." Question: "Your opinion would be that it was erroneous?" Answer: "Yes." The

last question and answer were stricken.

(629) Although the question was leading, that particular objection had been waived when his deposition was taken. Therefore, there was no reason not to allow the President of the Bank to testify to the same matters to which Miss Rosa was called upon to testify for the Bank.

Mr. White was then shown a communication which was mailed by the Bank to The Kennedy Company (not to the Kennedy Company Enterprises) which stated: "on this date we charged your account with the unpaid item described below: Drawn by The Kennedy Company, Drawn on 93-58." Reason for non-payment is incorrect ABA number. Mr. White was then asked if that

was a correct reason for failing to honor the check. Mr. White answered: "Well, I wouldn't say it is correct because there is enough identification on the check to pay, and the stamp and the name of the bank and clearing house number down here (indicating)." (R 627-628) The court struck the answer and told the jury to disregard it, although plainly his testimony on the point was at least as competent as Miss Rosa's and should have been admitted.

The court (R 832) prejudicially erred in refusing to permit Mr. Tanner to testify as to when Mrs. McCluskey learned that Kennedy's check has been dishonored.

On the question of damages, one of the key issues was the loss of the McCluskey account. Mrs. McCluskey testified in her deposition taken by the Bank that she became disenchanted with Mr. Kennedy at the end of May, 1968, but that she didn't learn the check had been dishonored until June 20, 1968. The Bank then claimed that the loss of the McCluskey account was not caused by the dishonored check. Cross-complainants offered to prove by Mr. Tanner's testimony that Mrs. McCluskey in a conversation on May 25, 1968, with Mr. Tanner said she was disappointed or disillusioned with Mr. Kennedy because his check hadn't cleared. (R 793). This testimony was offered to prove that Mrs.

McCluskey must have known at least as early as May 25, that the Kennedy check drawn on the Bank had been dishonored on or about May 22, 1968, and that her change of attitude toward Mr. Kennedy was directly related to the Bank's wrongful dishonor. The trial court refused to admit such testimony, on the ground that since cross-complainants had offered Mrs. McCluskey's deposition into evidence, they could not impeach her. This ruling is contrary to Rule 26 (f) which provides in part that: "At the trial or hearing any party may rebut any relevant evidence contained in a deposition whether introduced by him or any other party". The ruling was extremely prejudicial, as the loss of the

McCluskey account was a substantial portion of the total damages claimed by cross-complainants.

The rulings of the Judge before the jury herein reviewed, and the oral examination of attorney Kent S. Lewis by the Judge to aid Lewis in proving attorneys fees before the jury (R 917-920) all had a prejudicial effect upon the jury towards cross-complainants. This prejudicial attitude of the trial Judge is also portrayed in the summary given by the Court (R 710-721) and the motion for a mis-trial by Mr. Bayles. (R 729-731)

POINTS URGED FOR REVERSAL

- I. Order of Judge Merrill C. Faux:
- a. for a new garnishment, and without supporting evidence was error;
 - b. that defendant and cross-complainant Charles R. Kennedy replace \$11,000.00 in garnishment was error;
 - c. the continual threat of contempt against Charles R. Kennedy was error.

Rule 64 D (a), (b) (1), Utah Rules of Civil Procedure provides for abuse of the constitutional rights of "Due Process". It permits an injunction without hearing to prevent an individual to use his own bank account. This in commercial life today ruins the individuals credit and gradually chokes the life blood out of commerical trade. It permits the clerk of the court to issue the unconstitutional

injunction, tying-up funds (by name of garnishment) in a manner that is stronger than an injunction issued by a judge. Rule 65 A (b) provides temporary restraining order or injunction issued by a judge of the court without notice may be set aside without notice. Why should the clerk of the court be given stronger authority for injunctive purposes without notice than a judge?

The right to be heard is worthless without notice, Mullane v. Central Hanover Bank and Trust Co., 339 U.S. 306 (1950). Due process requires an opportunity to be heard, Grannis v. Ordean, 234 U.S. 385 (1950).

Prejudgment seizure of property under Wisconsin's prejudgment procedure was held unconstitutional because it deprived a wage earner of the enjoyment of earned wages without an opportunity to hear, Sniadach v. Family Finance Corp. of Bay View, 395 U.S. 337 (1969). The Sniadach rule applied to a bank account, Larson v. Fetherstan, 44 Wis. 2d 712, 172 N.W. 2d 20 (1969). Prejudgment Summary proceedings cannot be applied to recovery of household furniture under the Sniadach rule, Laprease v. Ramours Furniture Company inc., 315 F.Supp. 716 (1970). Prejudgment taking of property is in violation of the Constitution of Utah Article 1, Section 7, This section provides that no person shall be deprived of life,

liberty or property, without due process of law.

A defendant's denial of having taken any action to defraud creditors in any manner and denial of any intent to defraud creditors placed the plaintiff's second affidavit of claim of fraud or intended fraud at issue, which the Court refused to consider in accordance with due process of law. Godbe-Pitts Drug vs. Allen, 8 U 117, 29 P 881; Desert National Bank v. Little, Roundy & Co., 13 U 265, 44 P 930; Western Auto Co., v. Gurnea, 73 U 404, 274 P 863.

The Order to Show Cause issued in this case against defendant did not give the court any jurisdiction and was void

because it did not comply with the statute UCA 1953, Sec. 78-32-3; In re Schulder, 221 P. 565, 62 U, 591; Bott v. Bott, 20 U 2d 329, 437 P2d 684.

II. The trial court erred in its procedure before the jury as follows:

a. refusal to admit in evidence a check honored by the bank similar to the one in issue on the question of wrongful dishonor.

b. refusal to permit that portion of the testimony of Daniel White, President of the Bank, to be read to the jury that the check in question was dishonored by mistake.

c. refusal to permit Bernard M. Tanner to testify as to when Mrs. McCluskey learned Kennedy's check had been dishonored.

This ruling is contrary to URCP Rule 26 (f) which provides "At the trial or hearing any party may rebut any relevant

evidence contained in a deposition whether introduced by him or any other party". The ruling prevented cross-complainants from showing that the disturbance with the McCluskey people arose after the dishonor of the check was known by Mrs. McCluskey in as far as the McCluskey deposition which cross-complainants read into evidence.

d. Cross-complainants were entitled to recover for injury to reputation and impairment of health.

On the precedent of Loucks v. Albuquerque Nat. Bank, 418 P2d 191 (NM), the court refused to submit to the jury the question of damages to cross-complainant's reputation and health proximately caused by the bank's wrongful dishonor, and

refused to admit evidence on that point. It was the court's ruling that neither Charles nor Rebecca Kennedy were the Bank's customers, but only the Kennedy Company, a co-partnership, and it could suffer no such damages. The decision is predicated on the doctrine that a partnership is a separate entity from the partners who comprise it. However, the case at bar must be decided under California law, and separate entity doctrine has been repudiated in California. Park v. Union Mfg. Co., 45 Cal.App. 2d 401, 114 P.2d 373; Reed v. Industrial Acc. Comm., 10 Cal. 2d 191, 73 P.2d 191. Consequently, although the account was opened by Charles and Rebecca Kennedy, dba The Kennedy Company,

they as individuals are and remain the "customers" of the Bank under Sec. 4402 of the Commercial Code of California. This conclusion is strengthened by reference to California Corporation Code, Sec. 15006, which provides in part that: "A partnership is an association of two or more persons to carry on as co-owners a business for profit." The foregoing comes from the Uniform Partnership Act, likewise adopted in Utah (Utah Code 48-1-3). "Customer", as used in Commercial Code Sec. 4402, means "any person having an account with a bank." This definition is broad enough to include the individual partners, and the holding in Loucks; (supra) to the contrary should be rejected.

On the question of damages, Sec. 4402 of the Commercial Code provides as follows: "A payor bank is liable to its customer for damages proximately caused by the wrongful dishonor of an item. Where the dishonor occurs through mistake liability is limited to actual damages proved."

In construing this identical language, the Supreme Court of Indiana, in American Fletcher Nat. Bank & Trust Co. v. Flick, 252 N.E. 2d 839, said at p. 845:

Suffice it to say, that insofar as the fact before us require construction of Burns § 19-4-402, we construe it to permit recovery of monetary compensation for any actual or consequential

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