Brigham Young University Law School

BYU Law Digital Commons

Utah Supreme Court Briefs (1965 –)

1972

Commonwealth National Bank v. Kennedy Company, An Unincorporated Association, Charles R. Kennedy, Jr., Black Corporation, White Partnership, Doe One Through Doe Ten, Inclusive and the Kennedy Company, A Co-Partnership, Charles R. Kennedy; Rebecca Kennedy v. Commonwealth National Bank, A National Banking Association, And Firemen'S Fund Insurance Company: Brief of Respondents

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

ARGUMENT

POINT I.

THE JURY'S VERDICT SHOULD NOT BE DISTURBED WITHOUT A SHOWING THAT THE TRIAL COURT COMMITTED A PREJUDICIAL ERROR.

Appellants assign numerous errors to the trial court, most of them arising over the issue of the alleged wrongful dishonor of the \$5,000 check payable to Mr. McCloskey. The jury in this case sat through five full days of trial and after deliberation came to the conclusion on the basis of all the evidence that the claim for wrongful dishonor of the check was without merit. Appellants object to the exclusion of certain evidence by the trial court, primarily the testimony of two witnesses. A review of the record

will show the trial court conscientiously deliberated over each of the evidentiary rulings. For appellants to prevail upon appeal they must show not only that these closely considered rulings of the trial court were in error but also that such errors were of such magnitude that "there is a reasonable likelihood that a different result would have been reached" but for the errors. Brunson v. Strong, 17 Utah 2d 364, 412 P. 2d 451 (1966); Paull v. Zions First Nat'l Bank, 18 Utah 2d 182, 417 P. 2d 759 (1966).

POINT II.

OPINIONS AND CONCLUSIONS OF DE-PONENT, DANIEL WHITE, WERE PROP-ERLY EXCLUDED BY THE TRIAL COURT WHERE NO FOUNDATION WAS LAID AS TO THE QUALIFICATION OF THE WIT-NESS.

Defendants introduced at trial the deposition of Daniel White. White, a close friend and business associate of Charles Kennedy had been president of Commonwealth National Bank from 1964 to 1968 (T-620). The court refused to admit into evidence two answers which Mr. White gave in his deposition to the following questions, to which appellants object:

- Q. Do you know any reason why this check would have been returned by Commonwealth National Bank?
- A. No. We sent it back as we apparently did. It was an internal mistake (T-628).

- Q. Now I will show you in red some type-written ink with a little phrase typed on the front of the check as follows: "ITEM NOT DRAWN ON 11-97". Do you know how that got on the check?
- A. I couldn't say how it got on there. It is typed on there obviously. I just wouldn't know.
- Q. Your opinion would be that it was erroneous?

A. Yes (T-629).

Counsel for respondents objected to the admissibility of these answers on the grounds that no foundation was laid as to the qualification of the witness and that they called for conclusions of the witness. The objections were sustained.

The possession of the required qualifications by a particular person offered as a witness must be expressly shown by the party offering such witness. This follows from the nature of the situation and is universally conceded. See Wigmore on Evidence, 3rd Ed. §560, p. 640. Appellants contend that the fact that Mr. White was president of the bank qualified him to testify to the questions to which the objections were sustained. Respondent would submit that this contention is erroneous and that the title of bank president does not give a person holding such position a *carte blanche* qualification to testify as to each and every area of banking without showing that he is familiar with the particular area about which he is asked to give his opinion. Surely no one would contend that the title, President of General Motors, would give

such a person the right without further qualification to testify as to the mechanical structure of a Chevrolet automobile. A modern bank is in much the same position as any giant corporation, having many many different areas and divisions requiring particular knowledge about which all of them can be an expert. Absolutely no questions were asked by counsel for appellants as to Mr. White's qualification to answer the questions with regard to checking procedure of the bank. The only reference in the record concerning Mr. White's qualifications to give his opinion on this check is his admission during cross-examination that he was not familiar with the details of check processing which Commonwealth submits shows the validity of its argument:

- Q. Now did Commonwealth Bank wire when there was a nonpayment of a check where a check was dishonored? Did it send a wire directly?
- A. I don't know. I don't know what they did.
- Q. You mentioned earlier that it was a standard practice for a bank to wire the fact that this check . . .
- A. Look, I was president of the bank and I didn't get into every detail. Now, the cashier can give you an answer to the question if you want to subpoena him. It would be a lot better than mine (T-650-651).

In addition to the fact no foundation was laid as to Mr. White's knowledge in this area of banking, Mr. White testified he had no personal contact with the check (T- 651). He did not identify or state he was familiar with the signature card or the authorized signature for the Kennedy Company Enterprises account. He did not identify or review any photographs of the check showing its condition as it came into and left the bank. In summary, he had absolutely no foundation for the conclusions which the court struck from the record.

POINT III.

THE LOWER COURT CORRECTLY EXCLUDED THE TESTIMONY OF BERNARD TANNER.

Appellants introduced into evidence the deposition of Mrs. Nellie McCluskey which had been taken in Hamilton, Montana, and then attempted to impeach the credibility of her testimony by introducing testimony of Bernard Tanner. As part of appellants' offer of proof for admission of Tanner's testimony, the court received the testimony outside of the presence of the jury. Tanner would have testified that on May 25, 1968, Mrs. McCluskey told him that "the check hadn't cleared" (T-793).

The inequity of allowing Mr. Tanner to testify is readily apparent. Mrs. McCluskey was 1,000 miles away and could not be given the opportunity to explain or deny Mr. Tanner's testimony. This inequity is the reason why Rule 22 of the Rules of Evidence as adopted by Supreme Court of Utah gives the trial court the discretion to exclude such testimony. Rule 22 as pertinent states:

"As affecting the credibility of a witness . . . (b) extensive evidence of prior contradictory statements whether oral or written may in the discretion of the judge be excluded unless the witness was so examined while testifying as to give him an opportunity to identify, explain or deny the statement."

Counsel for appellants did not bring up the subject of Mr. Tanner's testimony during the deposition of Mrs. McClushey to give her an opportunity to deny or explain the statements attributed to her. In addition, during Mr. Kennedy's deposition counsel for Commonwealth National Bank asked Mr. Kennedy:

- Q. What other witnesses do you plan to call to trial other than Dan White?
 - A. Mr. Bernard Tanner.
 - Q. What will be the nature of his testimony?
- A. I don't know at this time. I haven't discussed it with him.

This gave appellants an additional opportunity to disclose Tanner's testimony in order that Mrs. McCluskey could be questioned further either by written interrogatory or another oral deposition. Instead, appellants chose to introduce the testimony at trial where no opportunity was possible to have Mrs. McCluskey explain the allegation. Plaintiff would submit that under such facts it was clearly within the discretion of the trial judge to exclude such testimony.

This result is not in conflict with Rule 26(f) as appellants suggest. The advisory committee's final draft

of the last sentence of Rule 26(f) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure from which Rule 26(f) of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure was adopted contains the following clause:

"[a]nd, without having first called them to the deponent's attention, may show statements contradictory thereto made at any time by the deponent."

In concluding that the Supreme Court eliminated the right to impeach testimony of a deponent by the introduction of contradictory statements where the deponent was not examined about such statements during the deposition by the elimination of the above clause, Professor Moore makes the following statement:

"What then was the effect of the Supreme Court's action in striking this provision out of Rule 32(c). It is believed the effect is this: Contradictory statements known at the time of the deposition hearing, or which reasonably could have been known, may not be used subsequently to impeach the deponent's deposition; the deponent should have been impeached at the deposition hearing by calling contradictory statements to his attention, and giving him the opportunity to explain." Vol. 4(a), Moores Federal Procedure ¶32.10.

This reasoning is consistent with Rule 22 with the exception that it doesn't even give the trial judge the discretion to admit the contradictory statements.

An additional reason for excluding the testimony of Mr. Tanner is that the testimony does not contradict Mrs. McCluskey's statements. The fact that the check "has

not cleared" on May 25th does not contradict the fact that the first time she heard the check was returned was June 20th because the fact the check had not cleared would only mean that Mrs. McCluskey's provisional credit at the Citizen's Bank had not become final. It would not mean that she had been notified that the check had been returned.

POINT IV.

THE TRIAL COURT CORRECTLY DIS-MISSED THE WRONGFUL GARNISH-MENT CLAIM.

Appellants' position that Rule 64(d) of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure violates Utah Constitution, the United States Constitution, and Rule 65(a) of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure, and therefore, appellants are entitled to damages for wrongful garnishment is clearly without merit. Sniadack v. Family Finance Corporation of Bayview, 395 U.S. 337 (1969), cited by appellants, is the only case decided by the United States Supreme Court concerning the constitutionality of prejudgment garnishment involved a Wisconsin statute. Because the Wisconsin garnishment statute was narrowly drawn (it did not require cause for garnishment or means for release prior to judgment) and because the case involved the garnishment of wages which the court found to be an area needing special protection, the statute was struck down as violating procedural due process. However, the court made it clear that such summary procedure may

meet the requirements of due process in extraordinary situations. Rule 64(d) requires a bond, an affidavit showing cause, and provides a means for release by defendant. In addition wages were not garnished. In summary, none of the due process problems the United States Supreme Court found objectionable in *Sniadack* are found in Utah Rule 64(d) or in this case, and respondent submits that Rule 64(d), especially in non-wage cases, is within "extraordinary situations" justifying summary procedure which the United States Supreme Court found proper in *Sniadack*.

In any event assuming that the Utah statute was unconstitutional respondent would submit that this fact would only entitle defendant to a release of garnishment and not to damages for wrongful garnishment. Wrongful garnishment requires the showing that the grounds alleged for the garnishment do not exist. Cahoon v. Hoggan, 31 Utah 74, 86 P. 763, 764; 6 Am. Jur. 2d Attachment 601. The fact a garnishment statute was declared unconstitutional would not make the garnishment wrongful. None of the cases cited by appellants involved a claim of wrongful garnishment. These cases either involved an attempt by the party whose funds were garnished to have the garnishment released or had nothing to do with garnishment.

The only party that stands to lose from the garnishment proceedings is Commonwealth National Bank and not appellants. Commonwealth has lost its security for enforcement of its judgment by the garnishment having

been released through an ex-parte proceeding without notice to Commonwealth. Under such circumstances if anybody should be heard to complain it should be Commonwealth and not appellants.

POINT V.

TESTIMONY OF MENTAL SUFFERING AND ANXIETY WERE PROPERLY EXCLUDED BY THE TRIAL COURT.

West's Annotated California Code, Commercial, Section 4402, which governs damages for wrongful dishonor of a check states:

"A payor bank is liable to its customer for damages proximately caused by the wrongful dishonor of an item. When a dishonor occurs through a mistake, liability is limited to actual damages proved."

Section 4-402 of the Uniform Commercial Code, from which the above section was adopted, was included by the framers to restrict the common law which had allowed "per se" damages to a merchant or trader without any proof of actual damage. See Uniform Commercial Code, 4-402 Comment 3. Even under the more liberal common law emotional distress did not constitute a recoverable item of damage for wrongful dishonor of a check. Michie, Banks and Banking, 5(a), §244. To accept defendants' argument that damages for mental distress and anxiety are now recoverable under the Uniform Act one must determine that the framers restricted the recovery of damages to actual damages but at the same time opened the back door to allow the recovery of the nebulous item

of mental suffering and anxiety. There is no evidence to support such a claim. Appellants claim that section 4402 sounds in tort is untrue as Comment 2 of the Uniform Act discloses:

"2. The liability of a drawer for dishonor has sometimes been stated as one for breach of contract, sometimes as one for negligence or other breach of tort duty and sometimes as defamation. This section does not attempt to specify a theory." U. C. C. 4-402, Comment 2 (1962 Text).

Respondents would submit that it is clear from the Comments to the Uniform Act that the framers did not intend to expand the common law but rather to restrict it, and certainly did not intend to allow recovery for mental suffering and anxiety where such damages were not recoverable under common law.

An additional reason existed for excluding evidence of mental suffering and anxiety in this case. The mental suffering claimed was by a partner (Charles Kennedy) while the wrongful dishonor was of a check of the Kennedy Company, a partnership (T-597). In the case of Loucks v. Albuquerque National Bank, 76 N. M. 735, 418 P. 2d 191 (1966), a case very similar to the one herein, the New Mexico Supreme Court held that partners were not entitled to recover for injuries or illnesses claimed because of wrongful dishonor of a partnership check. In rejecting the claim of a partner to recover for damages of an ulcer

which he claimed was caused for dishonor of a partnership check, the court stated:

"No duty was owed to him personally by reason of the debtor-creditor relationship between the bank and the partnership." Pg. 197.

The court after reviewing several different legal situations in which a partnership is a legal entity, including the fact that it is recognized as one under the Uniform Commercial Code (U. C. C. 1-201) the court met the contention that a partnership is not considered a legal entity in all situations:

"We also appreciate that a partnership is not considered a distinct legal entity to the extent that a natural person or corporation is so regarded in the law, but here we are dealing only with the question of separateness as a customer or depositor of the bank, and its rights to any damages flowing from wrongful dishonor of its checks drawn on its account. The relationship between a bank and its depositor is a contractual relationship of a debtor and a creditor . . . As shown above, a partnership can enter into a contractual relationship of debtor and creditor, as a customer of the bank, in accordance with the express provisions of the Uniform Commercial Code.

'While a partnership at common law was not considered a distinct entity from the partners comprising it, the modern tendency is the other way, i.e., to treat a partnership as an entity distinct from and independent of the individuals composing it. 20 R. C. L., ¶80456 and cases under Note 16;' Gleason v. Sing, 297 N. W. at 722."

The main theme of the *Loucks* opinion is that for purposes of banking accounts, partnerships are separate legal entities and, therefore, each partner shouldn't be able to recover for alleged partnership injury. Respondents submit this is sound reasoning and urges this court to follow *Loucks*.

POINT VI.

THE COURT CORRECTLY INSTRUCTED THE JURY CONCERNING THE SIGNATURE CARD AGREEMENT.

Jury Instruction 10 concerned the question of signatures on the signature card. The issue before the court was not whether Charles Kennedy's wife was an authorized signature on the account as appellants contend, but rather whether the signature "Rebecca Kennedy" was an authorized signature when the signature card was signed "R. Z. Kennedy". There was no evidence in the record that there was any agreement between the bank and the appellants to honor checks signed differently from the signature on the signature card. The evidence in this record is to the contrary. Dan White, president of the bank, and appellants' witness testified:

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